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THE PRESI DENT: The Senate will
pl ease cone to order

| ask everyone present to pl ease
rise and repeat with nme the Pl edge of
Al | egi ance.

(Wher eupon, the assenbl age recited
the Pl edge of Allegiance to the Flag.)

THE PRESI DENT: In the absence of
clergy, may we bow our heads in a nonent of
silence, please.

(Wher eupon, the assenbl age
respected a nonent of silence.)

THE PRESI DENT: Readi ng of the
Jour nal

THE SECRETARY: In Senat e,
Sunday, January 15, the Senate net pursuant to
adj ournnent. The Journal of Saturday,

January 14, was read and approved. On notion,
Senat e adj our ned.

THE PRESI DENT: W t hout
obj ection, the Journal stands approved as
read.

Presentation of petitions.

Messages fromthe Assenbly.

Messages fromthe Governor
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Reports of standing conmttees.

Reports of select commttees.

Comuni cations and reports from
state officers.

Motions and resol utions.

Senat or Robach.

SENATOR ROBACH: Yes, Madam
President. | nove that the following bills be
di scharged fromtheir respective comittees
and be recomm tted with instructions to strike
the enacting clause: Senate Bill Number 4736,
pl ease.

THE PRESI DENT: So ordered,
Senat or Robach.

Senat or Skel os.

SENATOR SKELGCS: Madam Pr esi dent,
if we could go to the noncontroversial reading
of the cal endar.

THE PRESI DENT: The Secretary
w Il read.

THE SECRETARY: Cal endar Numnber
32, by Senator Vol ker, Senate Print 6325, an
act to anmend the Mental Hygi ene Law and
ot hers.

SENATOR GONZALEZ: Lay it aside.
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THE PRESI DENT: The bill is laid
asi de.

Senat or Skel os, that conpletes the
noncontroversi al reading of the cal endar.

SENATOR SKELGCS: Tinme flies when
you're having fun. But if we could now go to

the controversial reading of the cal endar.

THE PRESI DENT: The Secretary
wi |l again read.
THE SECRETARY: Cal endar Nunber

32, by Senator Vol ker, Senate Print 6325, an
act to anmend the Mental Hygi ene Law, the
Correction Law, the Crimnal Procedure Law,
the Executive Law and the Fam |y Court Act.
SENATOR GONZALEZ: Expl anati on.
THE PRESI DENT: Senat or Vol ker,

an expl anati on has been requested.

SENATOR VOLKER: Madam Pr esi dent,
thisis -- I"'mtrying to think about how nany
years -- initially this bill or a bill, a very
simlar bill was introduced by me in 1994

after the Kansas vs. Crane decision in the
Suprene Court. What this bill provides for,
and we have passed a simlar bill on many

occasions, is for civil commitnment of sexually
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vi ol ent predators.

Now, this bill is the Governor's
programbill for 2006. And the reason
nmention that is the bill that we passed | ast
year, in 2005, was extrenely simlar except
that we've had sone additions and corrections,

so to speak.

In fact, | noticed that one of the
oppositions to this bill is the Coalition for
the Homeless. | think the Coalition for the

Honel ess really doesn't understand this bill
as a |lot of people don't, very honestly. 1In
fact, one of the things that we did this year
was to strike out a reference in the bill to
hospitalized patients. And really that was
tal ki ng about people who either were in jail
or were in a hospital situation in jail
Because a | ot of the nmental health people
t hought that that nmeant that we m ght be
putting sexually violent predators in |oca
hospitals. Well, of course, that was never
the intention.

The process that's involved here,
by the way -- and | read in the paper a |ot of

peopl e say, well, it's unconstitutional. No,
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it's not. The process is constitutional.

It's been chal l enged several tines. The
Kansas | aw has been upheld twice. In severa
ot her states they have a very simlar process.

The process involves psychiatrists,
it involves -- the Attorney Ceneral is the
precipitator. He gets the notice of who is a
potentially sexually violent predator that is
sonmebody who's about to leave jail.

One of the things | think that has
happened here is that the Governor, using
Article 9 of the Mental Hygi ene Law, has
actually kept in people who are consi dered
nmentally ill and has tried to use the Mental
Hygi ene Law. The only problemw th that is it
does not provide, in fact, the process and the
protections that are involved in this bill

This bill provides all sorts of
protections, including counsel, psychiatric
eval uati ons by the person invol ved, review
every year of a person's status.

And what just happened with the
Governor was to ne very, very inportant. And
|'ve spoken on this issue on a national -- in

national conferences. One of the argunents
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against it is that we just do not have enough
nmental health counseling and that we just do
not have the ability to deal with sone of

t hese peopl e.

The way you do it, and the only way
you're really going to deal with sexually
violent predators to try to deal with their
problem is to spend a |lot of nmoney. And |I'm
the first to say that. |In fact, the New York
Times, in its usual candid style, was
criticizing civil commtnment by saying it's
just too expensive, sort of.

Well, the Governor of this state
has ponied up. He's put up $192 mllion,
$130 million for a facility at Pharsali a,
which is nowa mninumfacility, and which is
part of the trenmendous drop in innates.

By the way, | noticed the
Governor's press release said that there's
63,100 inmates in the system That was | ast
week. This week there are under 63,000 for
the first time. The New York corrections
system has gone from 74, 000-plus to now 62, 900
and sonmething. The reason that's significant

is we're the only prison systemin the country
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that has a falling innmate rate and a falling
crinme rate at the sanme tine. | only mention
that because | think that's inportant.

My own personal opinion has been
for some time that what we should do in
New York is make ourselves a nodel for the
rest of the country in dealing with sexua
predators. And what the Governor has proposed
is just that. W' re talking about a | ot of
noney and a | ot of enployees who are targeting
t hese people. In other words, once this whole
systemis in place, we probably will be abl e,
in New York, to |look at sexual predators and
their problens and try to deal with themin a
way in which no state in the union has been
able or willing to do. And that is critically
important, | think, if we're going to dea
with this kind of issue.

(El ectronic noise interruption.)

SENATOR VOLKER: | just want to
poi nt out sonmething -- am | bei ng bugged?
Anyways, | just want to show that |

have here the Level 3 sexual predators from ny
district. This is the conpilation of the

Level 3 sexual predators. One of themlives
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wi t hi n about three bl ocks of ne.

The reason | nention this is -- and
of course Senator Dean Skel os here has been
wor ki ng on Megan's Law, and we're very hopef ul
that he can come to an agreenent on that
extension. But the reason this is significant
is that some of these people are going to end
up in a situation where they may well need
civil comm tment.

You know, where | figured out, by
the way, that this issue, if you |look at the
devel opnent of the sexual predator issue,
first found out when a young Senator from
Harl em whose father was very close to ne and
ny father, asked nme to go down to Harl em and
do a hearing on sexual predators. He shal
remai n nanel ess, but | can only say that he
sits right in front of ne now as the Mnority
Leader. He asked me to do a hearing as part
of a series of hearings across the state.

And we went to Harlem and we sat
there and listened to people tal k about abuse,
nostly children, but al so abuse of wonen and
nmen. We had a wonen-hating psychol ogi st, nan,

and right after himwe had a wonan- hati ng
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psychol ogi st -- or a man-hating psychol ogi st,
worman. | nean, it was the nost incredible
heari ng we had ever had. | renenber there

were 32 witnesses. And Senator Paterson said
to me, "You know, we need psychol ogi sts right

now oursel ves," after that was done.

And the reason | say that was
significant is you nust renmenber society only
very, very recently has realized how serious
this problemis. W still haven't cone to
grips, for instance, with clergy abuse. W
think it's the Catholic Church. W all know
that's not true. All the major religions have
a problemwith it. W all know that, but no
one has really got into it yet. It's a very
serious problemthat has been coning for
probably 30, 40 years.

But the civil commtnent issue is
something -- we're tal ki ng about peopl e,
nostly people that attack young chil dren.
They're very sick people. This bill wll
all ow us a process -- not violation of civil
rights or anything of that nature -- a process
to be able to keep people in a place where

nment al hygi ene people can review themon a
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regul ar basis and give themintensive
treatment that may | ead to a breakthrough in
finding out howto deal with people who are
sexual ly violent predators. Because we're not
succeeding. There is no question we're not
succeeding well at all.

There's no question that this
i ssue, even though it involves a conparatively
smal | nunber of people -- and | keep this in
m nd, obviously the violent people in this
state are nuch greater. But the nunbers of
peopl e who are being sexually abused is
extrenely frightening.

And | will guarantee you this, that
we are and we have been a | eader in crimna
justice. And whatever you can say about
George Pat aki, he has been an enornous | eader
in crimnal justice. W have probably the
nost respected crimnal justice systemin the
nation right now. W don't realize it because
of course the media in this state doesn't |ike
us and they don't want to tell that there's
anyt hi ng good going on in New York. But
that's just the way it is. The rest of the

states | ook at us and they narvel.
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I woul d hope that this nental
hygi ene crimnal justice initiative that we're
doing here with the hospital, with the nental
health noney that we're setting up and so
forth, will become a nodel for the country and
that we will learn howto deal with people who
are sexually violent predators so that we can
find some cure for it but, in the nmeantine,
keep them where they belong, which is in a

pl ace where they can't hurt anyone el se.

THE PRESI DENT: Senat or Duane.

SENATOR DUANE: Thank you, Madam
President. |f the sponsor would yield,
pl ease.

THE PRESI DENT: Senat or Vol ker,
will you yield for a question?

SENATOR VOLKER: Ch, sure. |I'm
sorry. | apologize. Yes.

THE PRESI DENT: You may proceed,

Senat or Duane.

SENATOR DUANE: Thank you, Madam
Presi dent .

Does the bill allow for the civil
commi t ment of juveniles?

SENATOR VOLKER: The bill is not
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specifically set up to allow for civil
comm tment of juveniles. However, we do have
a process, as you know, for review ng
juveniles. But it does not specifically dea
with the issue of juveniles.

What you nmean by "juveniles" is

juvenile of fenders?

SENATOR DUANE: Yes.

SENATOR VOLKER: No, it does not.

SENATOR DUANE: However, they
could be -- a juvenile offender, as opposed to

a yout hful offender, could be commtted under
this bill?

SENATOR VOLKER: Coul d be. But
you nust -- | think, you know, |ike anything
el se, you'd have to be an awfully bad
offender. It's possible it could happen, but
very unlikely.

The history, by the way, of civil
commitrment is you really are | ooking for the
worst of the worst. O course, we have
1l4-year-olds -- one l1l4-year-old nurdered,
what, 16 people, | believe, at one tine in
New York Gty and brought on the | aw that was

changed to | ower some of the ages. So | think
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we have to realize that sone young people are
probably worse than all the adults put
together. But it's a rare occasion.

SENATOR DUANE: But yout hful and
juvenile, | should say, as well as.

SENATOR VOLKER: Yeah. | don't
believe in Kansas that any -- |I'mnot aware
that anybody -- in fact, |I'mnot aware of
anywhere in the country that any juvenile has
been conmmtted, civilly commtted.

And | don't expect that's going to
happen in New York unl ess you have sonebody
that's so dangerous -- and, by the way, that
coul d happen now. | nean, under Article 9 of
the Mental Health Law, technically speaking,
if a person is that nentally ill, even a
juvenile could be held even now in a nental
facility. They wouldn't be held in a prison,
but in a nental facility.

SENATOR DUANE: Thr ough you,
Madam President, if the sponsor woul d continue
to yield.

ACTI NG PRESI DENT LI TTLE: Thank
you. Senator Vol ker, do you continue to

yi el d?
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SENATOR VOLKER: Yes, | certainly
do.

ACTI NG PRESI DENT LI TTLE: Thank
you. The sponsor continues to vyield.

SENATOR DUANE: Thank heavens the
switch was to anot her "Madam "

But I'mgoing to actually nove on.
What are the requirenents -- if a person who's
incarcerated i s being considered for
comm tnment, what are the -- what's the
notification to that person?

SENATOR VOLKER: Vel |, what
happens is that 120 days before the rel ease,
the Attorney General is to be notified that
this person is considered, by the Correction
Departnent and Mental Health or whatever, to
be a dangerous person. You then set up a
process that goes on for sone tinme. You have
psychi atrists, you have a multidisciplinary
group that gets together.

Go ahead.

SENATOR DUANE: Thr ough you,
Madam President, just for clarification, |
understand that the notification to the

Attorney Ceneral is 120 days before.
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SENATOR VOLKER: Yes. Right.
SENATOR DUANE: But |'m
wonderi ng, when is the person who's being

consi dered noti fied?

SENATOR VOLKER: Vel |, as soon as
that person is targeted -- that person, by the
way, now has the right to counsel. That

person has the right to have a psychiatrist of
hi s own choosing review his case.

The protections, the due process
ability isinthis bill. And there is no way
that a person could be civilly commtted
wi thout a thorough review He is entitled to
ajury trial if he so chooses. And as | say,
he's entitled to his own psychiatrist and his
own counsel .

SENATOR DUANE: Thr ough you,
Madam President, if the sponsor woul d continue
to yield.

How i s the person notified? What
is the process by which that person woul d
receive word that they are being consi dered?

SENATOR VOLKER: Vell, I would
assume that it would traditionally be the

Attorney Ceneral, who is in charge of the
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whol e proceeding, would notify this person and
obviously notify -- nmake the fornmal
notification to this person. And he would
then be apprised of his right to counsel and
woul d be apprised of his right to a

psychi atri st.

Remenber that, in the neantine, the
mul ti di sciplinary group or whatever, Mental
Heal th and all the rest of them have the
right to review himand actually have a
psychiatrist review him He can then, as |
sai d, have his own psychiatrist.

He then woul d go before a judge and
they woul d advise himof all his rights, and
he can then nove on to do what he wants to do.
He can ask for a jury trial, he can do
what ever he wants.

SENATOR DUANE: Thr ough you,
Madam President, if the sponsor woul d continue
to yield.

SENATOR VOLKER: Yes. Yes.

ACTI NG PRESI DENT LI TTLE: Thank
you. Senator Vol ker, do you continue to
yi el d?

SENATOR VOLKER: Certainly.
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ACTI NG PRESI DENT LI TTLE: Thank
you. The Senator vyi el ds.

SENATOR DUANE: I"mactually
going to ask this question sort of as a -- to
see if it's factual.

A person could be incarcerated and
the day after, potentially, the review could
begin even if that person was not even cl ose
to their release point; is that correct?

SENATOR VOLKER: No, that's
incorrect. |It's incorrect because the only
way you would do it is if the person was
within 120 days of his rel ease.

SENATOR DUANE: So through you,
Madam President, if the sponsor woul d continue
to yield.

ACTI NG PRESI DENT LI TTLE: Thank
you. Senator Vol ker, do you continue to
yi el d?

SENATOR VOLKER: Sure.

ACTI NG PRESI DENT LI TTLE: The
sponsor Yyi el ds.

SENATOR DUANE: So the sponsor is
sayi ng that for everybody, the whole thing

starts for the incarcerated person and for the
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people who will be preparing to make a
deci si on about what to do, for everybody it's

120 days; not hing happens before that?

SENATOR VOLKER: You see --
probably could. | guess the issue really is,
why would you do it? | nean, if they're
already in a nental facility -- and by the

way, they could be in a nental facility

also -- or in a correction facility, what
drives the process is the possibility that the
person is going to get out.

Now -- so | woul d suppose you coul d
do it beforehand. But you would -- | guess
you woul d ask why would you do it. Unless the
person exhi bits such problens -- and one of
the issues that has been brought up is that we
do have sone pedophil es and sone peopl e that
are in the prison systemnow that could be,
for instance, reviewed before their sentence
is up to determ ne where to put them But
that could be technically done now.

It's just that, interestingly
enough, this would possibly provide nore
rights to those people -- in other words, they

couldn't be put in this facility until they
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went through a process.

In other words, you've got

sonmebody, for instance, who's in -- well,
let's say Attica. |'mjust using that for
a -- and that person is a dangerous pedophile

and he creates a problemfor the prison
system One of the interesting issues is if
you were going to put himat this facility in
Pharsalia, for instance, | would assune the
only way you could do that would be to go
through a process of sonme kind to nake sure
that that person would have to go there
Because one of the things, Tom
that's inportant here is -- we have one
facility, for instance, right now for just
DWs. Wiich | happen to -- | had a part in
doi ng, because | thought it was a great idea
to keep themisolated. One of the things we
want to do with these people that are sexually
viol ent predators is give themthe best
treatnment we can but also isolate them
because they're very dangerous people. And
t hey coul d be dangerous even to the inmate
popul ati on, which is sonething that | think

some peopl e never think about.
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SENATOR DUANE: The conmittee
that reviews the petitions for commtnent, is
there a requirenent that any of the nenbers of
that commttee have expertise in nental
heal t h?

SENATOR VOLKER: The
mul tidisciplinary teamis the comm ssioners of
correctional services, nental health, and
anybody that is -- and nental retardation.
Because, renenber, nental retardation is al so
i nvol ved here.

Quite clearly, these people have to
be expert in the nmental health area, which is,
you know, the -- what you're doing here is

when you say "the conm ssioner,” obviously you
nmean the departnment itself has their people
there to review these people and be part of
this teamthat reviews the people that are
going for civil conmtnent.

SENATOR DUANE: And t hrough you,
Madam President, if the sponsor woul d continue
to yield.

ACTI NG PRESI DENT LI TTLE: Thank

you. Senator Vol ker, do you continue to

yi el d?
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SENATOR VOLKER: | do, yes.

ACTI NG PRESI DENT LI TTLE: Thank

you. The Senator vyi el ds.
SENATOR DUANE: VWhere woul d |

find the language in the bill about the

expertise in nmental health for the review ng

conmi ttee?

SENATOR VOLKER: Well, since you

have the people from Mental Health, when you

say "expertise," the Departnent of Mental
Heal t h and the Departnent of Mental
Retardati on are the people that are the
experts in the field.

And renenber, you're also in a
situation where you're going to have
psychi atrists involved, you' re going to
have -- in fact, the person hinself is
entitled to have his own psychiatrist.

And presumably an attorney coul d

ask for its owm -- the own expert, that is,

the person's -- an expert to review hinself.

Because the jury trial is a situation where

the attorney could ask for his own experts,

i f

he wi shed, to talk about this person's status.

So that is really inherent in the bill itself.

Candyco Transcri ption Service, Inc.




© 00 ~N o o b~ w N P

N NN N NN R PR R R R R R R R
O A W N B O © O N o 00 »h W N L O

160

SENATOR DUANE: | guess the --

t hrough you, Madam President, if the sponsor
woul d continue to yield.

SENATOR VOLKER: Yes.

SENATOR DUANE: Is it not
possi bl e that you could have, for lack of a
better term a civilian fromthe departnent as
opposed to a professional fromthe departnent?

SENATOR VOLKER: The answer to
that is no. | think the problemis, what's
the difference? | mean, renmenber what we're
doing here -- wait a mnute, Tom You know, |
know what you're saying. You' re assun ng that
this is sone sort of a process on a |oca
| evel .

This is a process involving sone of
the -- the biggest experts we have in the
field are going to be involved in this. And
you're going to have an attorney who could
protest, obviously, if the people involved are
not the people that should be review ng these
peopl e.

| mean, the whole idea of this is
to protect society at the sane tine you're

protecting the people thenmsel ves who are
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i nvol ved here. And, you know, so you don't

have to say, hey -- at least it doesn't seem
to me -- tell mental hygi ene they got to have
good peopl e.

Well, they better have good peopl e.
First of all, the attorney is going to nmake
sure that they -- that he knows if they don't
have good people, or the person. And the
psychiatrist for the individuals involved is
going to do that.

| mean, this is not a -- this is
not a process taken lightly. This is a very
serious process. So the answer is, quite
obviously, this is intended to nake sure that
the person gets every possi bl e consideration
when you're dealing with people who are going
to be kept for a long period of tine.

SENATOR DUANE: And t hrough you,
Madam President, if the sponsor woul d continue
to yield.

SENATOR VOLKER: Sure.

ACTI NG PRESI DENT LI TTLE: Thank
you. Senator Vol ker, do you yield?

SENATOR VOLKER: Yes, | do.

ACTI NG PRESI DENT LI TTLE: The
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Senat or vyi el ds.

SENATOR DUANE: Thank you, Madam
Presi dent .

And | want to preface ny next
guestion by saying that | absolutely agree
with the sponsor and know his conmtnent to
this issue and the seriousness with which he
and ot her menbers of his conference and,
frankly, our conference as well have
approached this.

But it's a new area; that's why |I'm
aski ng such specific -- and | apol ogi ze in
advance for how many questions, but | just
want to clarify as nuch as possible.

The issue the sponsor raised about
that it's a good thing to have a jury trial is
something that | wanted to ask why that is a
good thing, instead of having the person ask
to see a judge, who m ght have nore experience
in the issue than lay -- well, | shouldn't say
| aypeopl e, but potentially |aypeople on a
jury. Wiy are they prohibited from having
t hat choice?

SENATOR VOLKER: | am not aware

that they are prohibited.
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By the way, the answer, the

mul ti di sciplinary panel and so forth, is on

page 7 of the bill. And it relates to the
process that is taken -- the person has a
right to a jury trial. He will go before a

judge. That's assumed. No one is saying that
he has to have a jury trial. But he has the
right to go before a judge.

And if you | ook on page 7 and
page 8, you'll see that there's a prosecutor
review commttee, there's all sorts of
standards here that are set up to determ ne
probabl e cause and to determ ne whet her the
person should then be reviewed to be able to
be determ ned whether that person -- in fact,
if you see 10(d), I'mjust |ooking here, the
jury or the court, if a jury is waived, shal
det erm ne beyond a reasonabl e doubt whet her
the respondent is a sexually violent predator,
and so forth and so forth.

That's the applicable section.
apol ogi ze, | didn't --

SENATOR DUANE: And t hrough you,
Madam President, if the sponsor woul d continue

to yield.
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SENATOR VOLKER: | do, yes.

ACTI NG PRESI DENT LI TTLE: Senat or
Vol ker vyi el ds.

SENATOR DUANE: When New Yor k
State had a death penalty in effect, we had a
speci al group of attorneys whose
responsibility it was to be involved in the
def ense of those who were eligible to be given
the death penalty.

And if | argued that this issue
alnost rises to the level of the death
penalty -- | know it doesn't quite go there,
but if it alnost rises to that |evel, why
isn't there a requirenment that the appointed
counsel have that kind of training, expertise
inthis field?

SENATOR VOLKER: well, first of
all, Mental Health has a series of attorneys
who deal in this sort of thing.

The problemthat you've got to
realize here is you're not going to have
anyt hing close to the nunber of people that is
involved with the death penalty and the issues
that are involved there. And the protections

that are in this bill clearly are far greater
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than anything that is involved in jury trials
and so forth involving normal crimna
proceedi ngs.

You have the Correction Departnent
and the Mental Health Departnent involved
here, the people who treat people plus the
peopl e that incarcerate them You have the
attorney general involved. You' ve got al
sorts of different protections involved, which
frankly you don't have -- | suppose you have
| ocal district attorneys and so forth. This
process is a different kind of process than
with crimnal justice issues, of course.

And the appeal is already internal;
that is, the probable cause hearing and that
sort of thing. So all the evidence is there.
And you have psychiatrists on both sides.

| guess | have trouble -- the
attorney's job really is to make sure that the
person sinply gets the correct procedures.
And, you know, it seens to nme that there's
hardly any other area of the | aw where we
provi de as nmany protections as we do here.

SENATOR DUANE: Thr ough you,

Madam President, if the sponsor woul d continue
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to yield.

SENATOR VOLKER: Sure. Yes.

ACTI NG PRESI DENT LI TTLE: Thank
you. Senator Vol ker yields.

SENATOR DUANE: Wien | went
through the bill, | didn't see training
anywhere, whether it was judges or appointed
counsel. And so I'mjust trying to pin down
whet her there is any requirenent for any
specific training for anyone who m ght be
involved in this civil commtnent.

SENATOR VOLKER: | guess |I'm not
sure what kind of training we would require.

Remenber, Senator, we're in --
sexual predator treatnent, like so rmuch in
nmental health today, is sort of inits
i nfancy. One of the problens, by the way,
wi th equating physical and nmental health is
that we -- we do the best we can in nental
heal t h.

And the professionals are in the
Ofice of Mental Health and the Ofice of
Mental Retardation. Those professionals are
probably better than anybody outside the

agenci es. How you would -- the people who
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woul d train these people would be the sane
peopl e who are dealing with these sexua
predators. So |I'mnot exactly sure what kind
of training you could do.

And the |awers that are used in
this are generally | awers who do nent al
heal t h defense and all that anyways. Because
they' re people who would want to, and are paid
for, to do this sort of thing. Renenber, the
person has the right -- unless he's
i ndependently wealthy, which is a little bit
rare -- the person has the right to the state
payi ng for these | awers.

So the people that would do this
woul d obvi ously be people who were involved in
mental health cases and in the expertise
that's involved here.

SENATOR DUANE: Thr ough you,
Madam President, if the sponsor woul d continue
to yield.

SENATOR VOLKER: Sure.

ACTI NG PRESI DENT LI TTLE: Thank
you. Senator Vol ker does yi el d.

SENATOR DUANE: Wuld I find

anywhere in the bill a requirenment for an
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i ndependent psychiatric eval uation of the
respondent ?

SENATOR VOLKER: Yes, absol utely.
That's in the bill. It says that the person
has the right to his own psychiatrist. And
it's specifically in the bill -- 1 can't
identify exactly where it is, but that's in
the bill ever since, by the way, we first
introduced it back in 1994. And one year
passed three different civil conmtnent bills.

And | can assure you that the
requi renent of a psychiatrist of your choice
isinthis bill, as it's been in all the
bills.

SENATOR DUANE: Thr ough you,
Madam President, if the sponsor woul d continue
to yield.

SENATOR VOLKER: Sure.

ACTI NG PRESI DENT LI TTLE: Thank
you. Senator Vol ker yields.

SENATOR DUANE: Shocki ngly, when
| asked that question, | actually didn't nean
that the respondent's psychiatrist would be
i ndependent. | would assune they woul d have

t he agenda of wanting to be for the
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respondent, and the psychiatrist for the other
side woul d want to be agai nst the respondent.

I"'mwondering if there is an
i ndependent i ndependent person in the mddle
that could take each side with a grain of
salt.

SENATOR VOLKER: The requirenment
is that the attorney general and the
mul ti di sciplinary people and so forth have the
right and the duty to submit a psychiatric
eval uation. The other side then has the right
to their own psychiatric -- the person of
their choosing, they can be exam ned.

That really is -- | suppose if
there was sonme conflict, the attorney could
probably ask for another psychiatric
eval uation. But it seens if you had
psychi atric evaluations fromthe proponents
and the opponents, or whatever you coul d say,
it would seemto be enough. But | would
suppose there's nothing in here that says you
can't have a third party, but it only provides
for two psychiatric exam ners.

SENATOR DUANE: And t hrough you,

Madam President, if the sponsor woul d continue
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to yield.
ACTI NG PRESI DENT LI TTLE: Thank

you. Senator Vol ker, do you continue to

yi el d?
SENATOR VOLKER: Sure. Yes.
ACTI NG PRESI DENT LI TTLE: Yes.
SENATOR DUANE: Is there a

standard of care for the treatnent of those
who are conmmitted?

SENATOR VOLKER: This is a nental
health facility and basically a nmental health
statute. Wich, by the way, this is why it
didn't conme out of nmy commttee, because it
cane out of Mental Health. Because the
facility that the Governor is putting the
noney up for, although it is presently a
correction facility, it will really be run by
Ment al Hygi ene.

And anyone who is conmitted to the
care of nmental health people has a standard of
care that is required. And as the forner
chai rman of Mental Health to ny right rem nds
me -- and by the way, Frank Padavan and | are
the only two people that were on the Mental

Health Commttee since its inception, if |
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remenber right, way back when -- there is a
Mental Health Bill of Rights, there's all
sorts of protections, a quality of care

commi ssion, as the creator of that rem nds ne,
to | ook at these kind of things.

And | can assure you one of the
thing that the quality of care comm ssion wl|
probably be -- once this is operating, they'l
be | ooking at this -- these, because this is
going to be -- admittedly, this is breaking
new ground. And | would be willing to bet any
noney that the quality of care conm ssion is
going to be reviewing these facilities on a
regul ar basis.

SENATOR DUANE: And t hrough you,
Madam President, if the sponsor woul d continue
to yield.

SENATOR VOLKER: Yes. Sure.

ACTI NG PRESI DENT LI TTLE: Thank
you. The Senator vyi el ds.

SENATOR DUANE: On that issue of
the standards of care, is the parallel simlar
to the Departnent of Corrections has oversight
over the health facilities in correctiona

facilities, simlarly the Ofice of Mental
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Heal t h woul d have oversi ght over its nental
health facilities?

SENATOR VOLKER: Yes. Yes.

The way this -- as | understand the
way this operates, the facility is going to be
built by separate noney. And it's built on a
corrections site. But the actual operation of
the facility is going to be done by Ment al
Heal t h and by nmental health professionals.

The reason this is going to be
expensive i s because we are going to have a

| ot of intensive care at these facilities --

and the Governor well knows that -- that this
is going to be and hopefully will be a class
setup that will deal with these people in a

way that no other state in the union has ever
done.

SENATOR DUANE: And t hrough you,
Madam President, if the sponsor woul d continue
to yield.

SENATOR VOLKER: Yes. | do.

ACTI NG PRESI DENT LI TTLE: Thank
you. The Senator vyi el ds.

SENATOR DUANE: Is there

di fferent grades of the environnent, or is
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everyone thrown into the sane -- like within
the facility, will there be | ess dangerous,
nore dangerous, or will everyone just be

consi dered equal | y dangerous?

SENATOR VOLKER: Wl |, you know,
at this point, like anything else, | think,
these are people that are considered to be
sexually violent predators. And as to their
treatnment in the facility, there may well be a
grade dependi ng on how serious the offenders
are. But initially they'll all be confined,
they'Il all have -- in one facility.

Keep in mnd that we're separating
the sexually violent predators who are civil
commttees, so to speak, they' re separate from
anybody el se. There's no other people that
are going to be in this facility but these
people. And they will have the best
treatnent.

And obviously, if you have sonebody
that's going to be violent or potentially
violent, you're probably going to have nore
restrictions on those kinds of people because
they coul d be dangerous to everyone el se al so.

So | would assune that there will
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be grades set up. But at this point it's a
matter of comon sense as to what you're going
to do in this facility.

SENATOR DUANE: And t hrough you,
Madam President, if the sponsor woul d continue
to yield.

SENATOR VOLKER: Sure.

ACTI NG PRESI DENT LI TTLE: Thank
you. The sponsor Yyi el ds.

SENATOR DUANE: As part of this
bill, I don't see that there's any kind of
addi tional resources or commitnment to
providing treatnment for those i nmates who are
presently incarcerated.

Is there sone kind of conpanion
| egi sl ati on or budget item which would provide
for additional mental health services and
treatment for the -- for those who are -- for
sex of fenders?

SENATOR VOLKER: The answer to
that is yes.

The Governor, in fact -- |'mjust
| ooking for it here. O the $192 million that
t he Governor proposed, $130 mllion is for the

actual facility. The rest of the noney is to
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provi de for beefing up facilities in the
nmeantime and to keep people separated and to
provi de additional enployees for both QOVRDD
and Mental Health.

That amounts to, let's see --
35 mllion will be nade avail able for
renovation of current OVH facilities to neet
the short-termneeds, and 27 mllion in new
operating for OW in connection with the
treati ng and housi ng of these people while the
new facility is being built.

So these people will be separated.
In the neantine, keep in mnd, of course, that
this process will take a little bit to get up
and runni ng anyways, so that there won't be a
| ot of people that are going to be involved
here initially.

So the Governor is providing 35 and
27, which | think is $62 mllion in additiona
noney to deal with these people initially
until the new facility is up and running.

SENATOR DUANE: Thr ough you,
Madam President, if the sponsor woul d continue
to yield.

SENATOR VOLKER: Yes.
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ACTI NG PRESI DENT LI TTLE: Thank
you. The Senator vyi el ds.

SENATOR DUANE: So the new noney
is specifically -- the new treatnment noney is
specifically for those who are, for lack of a
better expression, on the road to being
civilly confined?

SENATOR VOLKER: Yes. These are
for people who are going to be or could be
civilly confined.

The idea is this is entirely
separate noney. One of the problens OWH was
concerned about is that they would have been
asked, with their present budget, to deal with
some of these people. And the Governor has
commtted that in his budget bill -- in fact,
there's a budget bill that has this |anguage
init -- that the Governor will provide the
noney to handl e these people in the neantine
until the new facility is up and running.

SENATOR DUANE: And t hrough you,
Madam President, if the sponsor woul d continue
to yield.

SENATOR VOLKER: Yes.

ACTI NG PRESI DENT LI TTLE: Thank
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you. The Senator continues to yield.

SENATOR DUANE: The other states
that do this, have a simlar civil commtnent
| aw are Kansas and Washington State; is that
correct?

SENATOR VOLKER: Yeah, | think
there's one other that's tripping in. MW
counsel tells ne there's a couple nore too.

But the ones that have been operating are
Kansas and Washi ngton State, because those
were the ol dest pieces of |egislation

i nvol ved.

SENATOR DUANE: And t hrough you,
Madam President, if the sponsor woul d continue
to yield.

SENATOR VOLKER: Yes, | yield.

ACTI NG PRESI DENT LI TTLE: Thank
you. The Senator continues to yield.

SENATOR DUANE: Thank you. Has
anyone ever -- well, | guess naybe there's two

or three that have been rel eased from Kansas.

SENATOR VOLKER: Yes.

SENATOR DUANE: Any from
Washi ngt on?

SENATOR VOLKER: | really don't
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know. There's not a |ot of people, if |I'mnot
m st aken, in Washi ngton.

And Kansas is -- the story in the
New York Tinmes told about how sone Kansas
| egi sl ators were conpl ai ni ng because it was
costing themtoo much. O course, you have to
keep in mnd the whol e Kansas correction
budget is one facility --

SENATOR DUANE: | just want to
correct sonething. It's actually, | think,
Kansas, no one has gotten out. Washi ngton

State, nmaybe a couple of people have been

rel eased.

SENATOR VOLKER: Yeah, could well
be.

| think the people that are in
Kansas -- this is just fromwhat |
understand -- are really such people that they

real ly never envisioned they woul d ever get

out. | nmean, they don't have a | ot of people,

and | think they -- and, by the way, they

don't have the kind of treatnent, | do not

believe, that we're tal ki ng about doing here.
So we woul d certainly be hopef ul

that we could get sonme real progress in mental
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heal th and sexual predators with the proper
treatnent.

SENATOR DUANE: Thank you. Thank
you.

Madam Presi dent, on the bill.

ACTI NG PRESI DENT LI TTLE: Thank
you. Senator Duane, on the bill.

SENATOR DUANE: My concerns about
this bill are several, frankly. And | would
like to get themon the record in the hope
that if there's nore discussion about this
bill, in the unlikely case the Assenbly
doesn't pass this exact bill, that some of
these things mght get into the discussion
about another bill.

I"mvery concerned about the
possibility of the comm tnent of young peopl e,
yout hful and juvenile offenders. And | would
like to see | anguage which would differentiate
what woul d happen between adults, youthful and
juvenile of fenders, because in ny mnd they're
all different -- although, in nmy mnd,
juvenile and youthful are simlar, but I
realize that's not how New York's law is

witten.
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| am very concerned about the
requi renents for notifying soneone who's being
considered for commtment. 1In a crimna
case, well, the police and even the DA can do
an investigation and then an indictnment
happens and then the defendant knows they
better get an attorney.

However, this is not a crimna
situation, this is a nmental health issue. And
it seens to nme that everyone should be able to
start together, the person who's liable to be
civilly commtted at the sane tine that the
state is thinking about civilly conmtting
them It strikes me that it would be fairer
and | evel the playing field.

And | know that's an odd thing to
say when you're tal ki ng about who the people
are who are falling under this. But for |ack
of better term nology, that's what |I'm going
to call it, that both sides should have the
same notification to prepare.

| also think that we need to be
nore specific about the training for those who
are going to adjudicate and those who are

going to, frankly, on both sides prosecute, if
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you will, or fight for civil commtnent and
those who are going to be on the side of the
person who is liable to be civilly comm tted.

And | also think that it may be
better to -- and | understand that it doesn't
say that you can't -- that it seens like a
good thing that you get a jury. But I'd like
to see | anguage which makes it clearer that
you could just have it go before a judge.
Particularly if, at the end of the day, the
judge is the person who has nore training in
this issue, simlar to the special way that we
treat or we had been treating death penalty
cases.

And | think we have to put all of
this, the requirenents about what happens when
someone is incarcerated as the preparations
are made for the civil conmm tnent process --
there is no public synpathy, obviously, for
sexual predators. And I think then we have --
as legislators, even if it's distasteful, it
is our job to nmake sure that in an atnosphere
of no public synpathy at all, that the rights
of the person who's going into this process

are protected.
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Because | don't think there would
be -- there will be very little public
scrutiny of nmaking sure that that person has
adequat e representati on and def enses,
et cetera. So even if the public does know,
it's probably not helpful. So I think we have
to be extra careful to nake sure that we build
in those protections, even if it seens like a
di stasteful thing for us to do.

| also think that -- and agai n,
this is, you know, I'mnot -- | wouldn't be a
hundred percent trustful of the psychiatrist
who is speaking for the respondent, and I
woul dn't be a hundred percent confident in the
psychiatrist for the agency. 1'd like to have
an i ndependent person.

And | also think that it puts the
psychiatrist -- it puts both psychiatrists on
both sides in a difficult position, because
nei ther one of themwould Iike to be
responsi bl e for allow ng soneone to be
rel eased who could turn out to have not been
rehabilitated.

So having an i ndependent person who

is nore -- who could take the heat | think
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woul d nake for a fairer process, as well as
just having an i ndependent evaluator to be

skeptical of what both sides have to say.

| also -- you know, the Depart nent
of Corrections' health facilities are -- there
is no outside nonitoring agency. |In other

wor ds, the Departnent of Health doesn't
nmonitor it. Corrections nonitors its own
health facilities, which | think is very
problematic. And to have OVH nonitor itself
on this | also think is problemtic.

I think we always need to have an
out side nmonitor, an outside auditor, because
it's unlikely that an agency is going to find
alot of fault with itself, certainly in a
public way.

And then just a few final points.
You know, it does ook to ne like Article 9 of
the Mental Health Law al ready has provisions
for the confinenent of the dangerously
mentally ill. And even if that hasn't always
worked, it still does exist in the |aw

In one of the visits | made to one
of our correctional facilities, | had the

opportunity -- it was at Green Haven -- | had
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the opportunity to speak with the deputy

commi ssioner in charge of all addiction
services, and | asked himabout if there was
treatnment in the facilities, in addition to

al cohol and drug treatnment, for sexua
addiction treatnment. And tragically, that was
considered to be a big joke.

So if we think that these people
are addicted to violent sexual behavior or
sexual behavior towards children, if we
bel i eve that these are behaviors simlar to
addi ction behaviors, then we need to provide
treatnent in facilities as well. And that is

not happening. Maybe with the new noney it

wi | | happen, but |I am skeptical about that.
Also -- and I'msorry, | forget
whet her it was Wodbourne or Sullivan -- | saw

a group of inmates who were devel opnental |y

di sabl ed, nentally retarded, who were
basically children with adult bodies. Some of
t hem had been convicted of inappropriate
sexual behavi or because, frankly, they had no
one really to watch over themto nake sure
that when they -- that they didn't sexually

act out inappropriately because they didn't
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know any better.

They have no place to go. There's
no place to release themto. It was pretty
tragic to watch who were very -- who were
basically extrenmely gentle, nmentally retarded
or devel opnental | y di sabl ed peopl e be | ocked
up in their cells with no hope of ever being
rel eased because there's no place for themto
go.

And | know that we're going to do
something in this legislative session on civil
confinement, but | still think that we have to
provide treatnent. There is no data that says
that all sexual predators are incurable. In
fact, there's data that shows that sonme are
And yet no difference is made in this bil

bet ween t hat.

You know -- and | guess, finally --
and again, | know we're going to do sonethi ng
on civil confinenent. | hope it's not this.
| hope it's a different bill, obviously. But

| think we need to keep in mnd that
90 percent, maybe 95 percent of the sex
of fenses that are perpetrated -- and | know

that, you know, one in the public eye is too
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many. But all of the others are never
recorded, never treated.

| mean, for instance, we underfund
rape crisis centers. The nost recent tragedy,
whi ch, you know, | can barely get through the
articles in the paper about what happened in
Brooklyn -- there's nothing that we're doing
to prevent those things, only things to
prevent them from happening in the future.

And there's nothing, actually, that
woul d prevent -- there still isn't enough that
woul d prevent the recurrence, for instance, of
what happened to that little girl after the
first tinme that it happened. And I think that
t hat happens way too often.

And if we're going to do this,
which will take care of a small percentage of
peopl e so that they won't reoffend, our work
has not even -- it's just the tiniest bit of
our work is acconplished.

Because all of those cases that are
not reported, all of those cases of, you know,
adults in the famly, famly friends, uncles,
people in positions of authority who

perpetrate these crines against children, or
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what happens in homes between narried couples
or people who are living together, we're only
touching the tip of the iceberg with what
we're trying to do here.

And it's ny hope that, even after
the public focus is off this legislation, when
we do pass sonething this session that we wll
not forget to go back and take care of the
t remendous nunber, the exponentially |arger
nunber of cases that we have done woefully
little to prevent.

Thank you, Madam Presi dent.

ACTI NG PRESI DENT LI TTLE: Thank
you, Senator Duane.

Is there any other Senator w shing
to be heard?

Senat or Kl ei n.

SENATOR KLEI N: On the bill,
Madam Pr esi dent .

ACTI NG PRESI DENT LI TTLE: Thank
you. On the bill.

SENATOR KLEI N: First, I'd like
to commend and congratul ate Senator Vol ker for
his coommitrment to this very, very inportant

i ssue.
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And | think it's certainly
appropriate that we're passing a civil
commtrment bill today at the sane tine that
we're taking up Megan's Law. | have been
saying that for sonme tine now, that over the
| ast ten years | think Megan's Law i s giVing
us sort of a false hope that we're truly
protected in our comunity.

And | think time and tinme again
what we're reading about is that we're
rel easi ng Level 3 sexual predators after they
serve very long jail tines, they register on
the Megan's Law registry, as they're required
to do under law, and that's it. But what
we're really doing is releasing ticking tine
bonbs into our comunity, waiting for themto
conmit another crine.

Unfortunately, that's happened
several tines in areas that | represent.
Earlier in the year, back in June, at the
Galleria Mall in Wiite Plains, a young woman
nanmed Conni e Russo was nmurdered by a Level 3
sexual predator named Philip G ant.
Unfortunately, I think M. Gant has the

dubi ous distinction of sort of becom ng the
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poster boy for civil confinenent.

Philip Gant was sonmeone who served
25 years in prison. He was serving a prison
termfor rape, a rape which he commtted in
the Bronx. He served 23 years for the rape;
they tacked on another two years because he
tried to kill someone, when he was in prison,
with an ax. This was soneone who was denied
parole nine tines. So clearly the parole
board knew that this was sonmeone who was not
ready to join society once again.

But yet M. Grant was released into
the conmunity. He went from honel ess shelter
to honel ess shelter. He refused any type of
nmedi cal treatnment or evaluation. Believe it
or not, he did register, as he was supposed to
under Megan's Law, even reregistered after the
90-day requirenent, again under the law. He
snuck into the Galleria Mall, stole a knife
out of a store, waited in the parking | ot of
the mall, and killed the first person that
cane in.

Agai n, anot her horrible exanple
whi ch happened a |ittle nore recently, in the

Throgs Neck section of the Bronx that |
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represent, is a man naned Shel don Becker.

Shel don Becker al so served a very |long prison
sentence for rape. He was rel eased back in
June. He went to live with a very good friend
of his. Just a couple of weeks ago, this man
raped and killed his friend s daughter.

Agai n, someone who was rel eased
into the conmunity. This was someone who was
so not being rehabilitated and so not ready to
join society that he didn't even show up at
his own parole hearing. But finally they |et
hi m out because he just refused to show up and
the tine el apsed and he was just rel eased
again onto the streets of the Bronx.

What |' m saying here today is that
| think we really need to have a civil
confinenent law. | think we tried every other
avenue. Longer prison sentences seemnot to
work in this situation. And | think it's
i ncunbent upon us, before we rel ease these
peopl e back into society, they're eval uated.

You know, | heard sone of the
debate so far today, and I know |'ve read sone
of the nenpbs by the groups who oppose this

| egislation. And | personally don't
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understand why. The psychiatric conmunity, |
know, had sonme opposition nmenos. | know that
| woul d want soneone on the field of
psychiatry to evaluate this person to
deternmi ne whether or not they're safe to go
back into society before they' re rel eased.
They're going to be one of the final says in
this, and | think this is inportant.

After these horrible instances, |
hel d a hearing in Wstchester earlier in the
year and | had people really fromboth sides
of the issue testify. But | nust say that
overwhel m ngly the people who testified at
this hearing were in favor of civil
confi nement .

One of the people who testified was
a gentleman by the nane of Kip Cornwell. He's
a |law professor at Seton Hall University and
he's director of New Jersey's Institute for
Law and Mental Health. He is really one of
the forenost experts on civil confinenent and
hel ped draft the New Jersey | aw.

And what he said was very, very
interesting. And | renenber one of the

guestions that was posed to him WlIl, do you
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really believe that nany of these individuals,
especially a Level 3 sexual predator, can be
rehabilitated? And his answer was no, that in
some cases you can have all the treatnent
there is, and all of the best doctors, and
sometines you're not going to actually cure
this person.

So | think, unfortunately, the only
answer is that a person like this has to be
civilly confined after they serve their prison
sentence. | think if you |look at the nunbers,
it bears out what |I'msaying. A Level 3
sexual predator is four tinmes nore likely to
commt the same or simlar crime when they're
rel eased fromprison. 1It's one of the also
horrible crimes that as these individuals get
ol der, in many cases, they even have a greater
proclivity to commt these crines.

So | think the only answer is to
have a constitutional process. And everyone
knows, and | know Senator Vol ker tal ked about
it earlier, the semnal case in this area was
the Kansas law. They were the second in the
nation to pass civil confinement. They've

becone the npbst fanmpbus because their | aw was
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chal I enged twi ce by the United States Suprene
Court, and it was found constitutional, as not
a violation of double jeopardy.

Because what's happening is after
someone serves a prison sentence, | think the
safeguards are in place to determ ne whet her
or not that person is civilly confined
certainly is something that's going to pass
constitutional rnmuster. So |I'm hopeful that |
think the politics is gone. The bantering
back and forth between the Senate and the
Assenbly also will cone to an end. Because |
think it's high time that we pass civil
confinement in New York State.

| vote for this bill. | urge ny
col | eagues to do the sane. And |'m hopef ul
that the Assenbly will follow through and pass
civil confinement as well.

ACTI NG PRESI DENT LI TTLE: Thank
you, Senator.

Senat or Sabi ni .

SENATOR SABI NI : Thank you, Madam
President. On the bill.

ACTI NG PRESI DENT LI TTLE: On the
bill.
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SENATOR SABI NI : | want to
congratul ate Senator Vol ker and say that |
support this bill, as |I have in the past, but
with a new fervor

And that is that | had the
privilege of attending the public forumthat
Senator Klein sponsored in Bronxville. And to
witness the relatives, the sons and nephew of
Conni e Russo, and obviously the sorrow t hey
had and obvi ously the anger they had that this
was all owed to happen to someone just going
honme fromwork at night -- as mllions of
New Yorkers do -- but, further, that this
sl eeper agent, this ticking tine bonb, was
within feet of tens of thousands of
respect abl e New Yorkers and even driven there
by the County of Wstchester every day from
hi s honel ess shelter. Because they have a
policy of bringing people, after the shelter
experience, to a nore popul ated area where
they feel they can better fit in and eat and
stay warm That, in effect, Wstchester
supplied car service for himto conmt this
crinme.

And to see their anger -- it's not
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t he sane kind of case, but, you know, we have
Kendra's Law in New York now. Many of us from
Queens renenber that Kendra Wbdal e was a
woman who, when she got out of college, was a
reporter at the Queens Tribune and intervi ewed
some of us who were in public life. And then
to read about what happened to her --
different set of circunmstances, different kind
of crime. But again, to think that there are
people in our society who are, in effect, in
our nei ghborhoods who are just waiting for the
opportunity to do this.

Now, | believe I'ma civil
i bertarian. But when you go through the
| evel s of actions that are required to be
civilly confined, between a multidisciplinary
review, an attorney general's review, a
hearing, a jury trial -- this is after you've
committed a crime and served your sentence.
If you' ve gotten that far and that nany peopl e
think that maybe you' re a danger to society,
I"mgoing to side with them

That may sound sinplistic, and |
don't like to be sinplistic on these matters.

But the fact of the matter is that we all have
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a right to sort of conduct our lives and
expect the government to protect us. And if
t he governnent knows, in our heart of hearts,
that there are people out there who are
capabl e of these things that we're letting do
t hese things because we as | awnakers haven't
set up a franework to protect its citizenry,

t hen shane on us.

So as | said, |'ve supported this
before, but | want to comment Senator Vol ker
and al so Senator Klein for having that forum
and bringing the Russo fanmly there to sort of
underline why this is inportant and why it's
i nportant that as New Yorkers we're allowed to
live our lives on a day-to-day basis and be
protected from people that experts will tel
us, and experts will review under this |aw,
shouldn't be in the street.

Thank you, Madam President. |'l|
vote aye.

ACTI NG PRESI DENT LI TTLE: Thank
you, Senator Sabini.

Senat or Liz Krueger.

SENATOR LI Z KRUEGER: Thank you,
Madam President. On the bill.
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ACTI NG PRESI DENT LI TTLE: Thank
you. On the bill.

SENATOR LI Z KRUEGER: Thank you.

Well, | suppose | want to point out
that | agree both with Senator Duane's
concerns and Senator Klein's support for
Senator Vol ker's bill. Because we know, as
Senat or Vol ker articul ated and Senator Klein
has continued to articulate both in the
Assenbly and the Senate, that the state has
needed to do sonething nore to protect its
citizens.

But it is also true that Senator
Duane highlighted, in his questioning of
Senat or Vol ker, nmany of the concerns that |
have that we should not wal k away i n passing
this bill -- and I will vote for this bill --
with the illusion that we really ended a
problemif we pass this bill.

And the fact is what we don't hear
anyt hing about this week with this
| egi sl ati on, although questions have been
raised, is where is the additional services
that are needed. Wat do we do with the fact

that, while this mght address a problem for
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some nunber of people who are found guilty of
sex offense crines, those in the area of
working with victims will tell us that up to
90 percent of the young people who are victins
of sex crinmes know their perpetrators, they
are the victins of incest, and those
perpetrators are not being found guilty and
they're not going through our crimnal justice
systemor our treatnent or civil confinenent
system And perhaps nost disturbingly, those
victinms are not getting treatnment. And we are
doing very little to prevent the continuing
rate of attacks on them

And as sone of us have raised
before, we are not addressing the probl ens of
going after, in an effective way, prosecution
of people who we know are committing these
crinmes. | support ending the statute of
limtations on rape, and we have not noved
through the Legislature on that bill. W
don't have the noney, at least in ny city, to
provi de adequate treatnent for victins of
sexual attack. W have rape centers that are
closing their doors. W have hospitals that

are saying they don't have the resources to
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treat the victins of sexual assault who are
comng to them And we have the ongoi ng
probl em of course, that people don't cone
forward and report that they have been the
victinms of sexual offense.

So | worry that with this
| egi sl ati on we shoul d not do announcenents we
have sol ved the problem W have addressed,
and perhaps not el oquently enough, one
subi ssue for one subuniverse of offenders who
have been caught and are consi dered such
extrene predators that there should be a
process that is gone through that hopefully
meets our constitutional standards and assures
equal treatnment under the |law for everyone.

But we heard just, | believe, |ast
week in the city about the casel oads for
parol e officers being so high that they argue
we are not nonitoring the crimnal justice
system at all near what the expectation is of
t he public when people do get out of prison.

We know that we are not, in fact,
doi ng everything we can to prevent sexua
assault, although |I understand that the

Capital District Center for Sex O fender
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Managenent in the district of Al bany has sone
excel | ent nodel s that we should be exploring
and replicating statew de.

| know that we aren't training our
staff well enough. | know we aren't providing
the services in our hospitals, in our police
systens to ensure we decrease the nunber of
victims. W encourage victins to cone
forward, we get them hel p, and we provide
treatnment in jails.

And | al so know, as Senator Duane
just said, that we risk very seriously in the
State of New York, unless we do this right --
and this bill I don't believe gives us the
funding to do it right -- we risk having civil
confinenent in a nmental health system which
al ready has unbel i evably vul nerabl e peopl e
living there. Senator Duane described his
visit to, | believe, two sites where, if we
sinply put our nobst dangerous predators in our
institutions, we risk doing greater harmto
people in the institutions and pretendi ng that
we sol ved the problemwhen we sinply noved a
probl em

Sol will vote for the bill. But |
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wi |l hope that, in conference between the
Senate and the Assenbly, that we will nove
forward with sone of the issues that are not
addressed in this bill that | believe our
col | eagues in the Assenbly have attenpted to
address through a series of bills that may or
may not have noved through their house yet.

But as we had one conference
commttee off of last week's bill, | hope that
we will continue to work together in both
houses to ensure that we sinply don't pass
freestandi ng one-house bills and say there's a
victory for the people of New York, but,
rather, we ask the very tough questions about
very tough issues.

Because of course this is one of
those very, very difficult issues. And it's a
scary issue. And so we have to nake sure that
we don't sinply pass one one-house bill and
say we've taken care of the problem because
with this bill we will not have taken care of
the problem we will have dealt with one
conpl ex piece of a very, very large and
conpl ex set of issues.

Thank you, Madam Presi dent.
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ACTI NG PRESI DENT LI TTLE: Thank
you, Senator Krueger.

Senat or Schnei der man.

SENATOR SCHNEI DERVAN: Thank you,
Madam President. Very briefly.

| also -- | do intend to support
this bill. 1 think that having the option to
conti nue confining the nost dangerous sex
of fenders after they get out of prison with
appropri ate due process shoul d nmake our
communities safer. But you have to do it
properly. You have to do it carefully. And I
have sone concerns about this bill that | want
to voice.

| do conmmend those who have noved
it forward to this point, and I am hopeful --
in fact, I"'mquite optimstic that we're going
to see the Assenbly pass a set of bills and
nove forward hopefully to a conference
commttee, as Senator Krueger has indicat ed.

| particularly want to single out
Senator Klein, who held the first public
heari ng | ast year, before the Assenbly held
its hearings, to really junp-start the process

and bring us, | believe sincerely, to where we
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are today.

It is inportant that we pass a bil
that can pass both houses, and it's inportant
that we pass a bill that can withstand a | ega
challenge. So | don't think that any of these
concerns that are being voiced here should be
trivialized. 1 think this is a very difficult
area of law. The law in this country, and one
of the reasons for the founding of this
country, is the principle that you do not | ock
people up for things that they nay do, you
only | ock people up for things that they have
done.

And when we get into an area of
prediction, it's always difficult. There are
exceptions to this. There are other
conmitnent statutes, as Senator Vol ker has
articulated. But | think there are sone
things that need to be noted.

First of all, | realize sone people
in this house believe that you have sone sort
of a noral obligation to put a poison pill
relating to civil litigation into every piece
of legislation. But let's get this

poi son-pill anti-trial-lawer provision out of
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this legislation. 1t's not going to pass the
Assenbly. Everyone in this state, whether
you're working on civil-conmtnent issues or
you' re working on | aw enforcenment issues or
medi cal issues or nental health issues, should
be held to the same standard of care.

This bill creates a good-faith
exception for the actions of public officials.
That's not going to fly. Let's stop kidding
around with that and get it out of here.

I would urge ny coll eagues here
that we can learn fromthe Governor's exanpl e.
You don't hear ne say that a lot. But the
CGovernor realized that his bill could be
better. He's introduced a bill since 1997,
and he realized it could be inproved. And one
of the things that was on display this norning
was his commtnment to separate those who night
be confined under this legislation fromthe
general nmental health population. As Senator
Duane and Senat or Krueger have pointed out,
this is a serious concern.

So let's follow the Governor's
exanple. There are ways we can nake this bil

better. Sone of themwere in the package of

Candyco Transcri ption Service, Inc.




© 00 ~N o o b~ w N P

N NN N NN R PR R R R R R R R
O A W N B O © O N o 00 »h W N L O

205

bills that the Assenbly rolled out at the end
of last year. Again, | take nothing away from
those who woul d take credit for forcing the
Assenbly to act on this issue. But let's |ook
at what they've done and see if we can inprove
our bill.

| nmean, one of the provisions in
the Assenbly bill deals with |onger prison
terms for the worst sex predators. That's
something that is actually in a bill by
Assenbl yman G anaris. One of the provisions
that the Assenbly deals with that we don't
deal with is tal king about where you get the
noney for counsel, talking about where you get
the noney for treatnent, providing for sexua
abuse prevention curriculums in the school and
sex abuse prevention training videos for
parents.

There is nore we can do. As
Senat or Duane has noted -- and if you take one
thing amay fromthis, let's be honest with the
people of the State of New York -- we are not
doi ng anyt hi ng about the overwhelmng najority
of those who cause these traumatic experiences

for our children, for our famlies, for our
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constituents. This bill does not provide the
treatment noney, this bill does not provide
resources for parole and probation officers
who are overburdened, this bill does not dea
with the overwhel ming portion of this problem
It deals with a narrow portion. W should
address that.

But let's ook at sonme of the
bi gger issues that it raises. If we go to a
conference cormmittee, let's go to a conference
conmittee on the overall issue of what we do
about sexual predators in this state, not just
passing a narrow bill to take the very worst
of fenders and put themin civil confinenent.

Finally, | want to note that | do
think there's a due process problemw th the
bill. And, Senator Volker, this is meant in

all good consci ence to advi se you, because

obviously, if we pass a bill that won't pass
the other house, we're not doing anything. |If
we pass a bill that's get struck down in the

courts, we aren't doing anyt hing.
And your problem-- you know, wth
all due respect to sone people who' ve opined

on whether this proposed | egislation conplies
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with the prohibitions of Kansas v. Hendri cks,
| don't think your problemis the U S. Suprene
Court, ladies and gentlenmen. | think you' ve
got the highest court in the state to get past
on this issue before you get to the U S
Suprene Court. | don't think the Suprene
Court has gotten nore liberal since 1996. So
| think the U S. Suprene Court is not the
i ssue.

| do, however, think you m ght have
an issue with the Court of Appeals of this
state, for the followi ng reason. | agree with
Senat or Sabini that there are substantia
protections in place in this |egislation
bef ore soneone gets civilly confined. You
have a panel, you have a hearing, you have a
right to atrial by jury, you have the
attorney general reviewing the file. | think
you have a good argunent that you have
adequate protections before people go in under
this bill.

| woul d note, however, the dramatic
gap between the procedures approved in Kansas
v. Hendricks and the procedures provided in

this bill to |l et soneone out if they can
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denonstrate that they are no | onger in need of
civil confinenent.

The Suprenme Court said very, very
clearly in Kansas v. Hendricks, in approving
the Kansas statute, this is approved because,
anong other things, this statute perntted
i mredi ate rel ease upon a showi ng that the
i ndi vidual is no | onger dangerous or nentally
inmpaired. There is a provision in the Kansas
statute that you i mediately get out.

Now, in the New York statute that
i s being proposed here -- and Senator Vol ker
di scussed this, but very, very briefly -- you
don't get an inmmediate relief if you can
denonstrate this. What you get is every year
you have to be evaluated and then, after the
eval uati on, the conm ssioner, whichever
conmm ssi oner has jurisdiction, determ nes
whet her or not -- and this is the | anguage of
the statute -- "The conm ssioner shall review
such records and reports, along with the
findings of the psychiatric exam ner, and make
a determnation in witing as to whether the
person no longer is a sexually violent

predator. The conmi ssioner's witten
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determi nation shall be provided to the court
that commtted the person under this article.”

The actual psychiatric eval uation
doesn't go to the prisoner, doesn't go to the
court. You have the conmm ssioner hol ding the
keys. The conm ssioner once a year has to
read a psychiatric evaluation and determne if
a person is a sexually violent predator. That
neans this all comes down to, essentially, a
di scretionary act of the conm ssioner.

The only remedy for this, if a
conmi ssi oner wouldn't | et someone out -- and |
note that the i medi acy which was specifically
noted in the Suprene Court decision is not
provi ded here. This just provides that once a
year someone gets examn ned and the
conmi ssi oner decides if he or she believes
this person is a sexually violent predator.

If the comm ssioner does not decide
that, you can't get out. You can naeke a
petition; you can file, | guess, an Article 78
proceedi ng that this was wongfully deci ded.

It is a very, very steep clinb. It is not
anything like the substantial due process

consi derations that are given to the person
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who woul d be confined on the way in.

| would urge you, ny coll eagues,
that we have to have a better systemfor
| etti ng peopl e out who can denonstrate that
they no | onger pose a threat to society, as
was done in Kansas.

So under this statute as proposed
by Senator Volker, it's hard to get soneone in
to civil confinement, but it is virtually
i npossi ble for anyone civilly confined to get
out. It's very, very difficult, and it's very
much subject to the discretion of the
conmi ssi oner .

So in addition, this statute
provi des that once your initial petition to
get out is denied, if a person has previously
filed a petition for discharge, then the court
shall deny the subsequent petition unless the
petition contains facts upon which a court
could find that the person's nental
abnormal ity has so changed as to warrant an
evi denti ary heari ng.

So again, there's a steep slope for
the public authorities to go through to get

someone in, but there's a steeper slope for a
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confined person to go through to get out. |
thinks that's a constitutional infirmty. |
think that's sonething that has to be cl eaned
up if we want the statute to actually becone
| aw, survive a |legal challenge, and do
anything to protect the people of this state
that it is intended to protect.

Many of us have heard the stories
of what's happened, we have children
oursel ves, we are concerned about the issue of
sexual predators. W'd like to do something.
Most of us, | think, in our candid nonents
acknow edge that this does not solve the
problem this deals with a very narrow group
of people. W need nore funding, we need nore
treatment, we need a better way to deal with
peopl e.

And Senat or Duane was right on when
he noted that the nost recent scientific
evidence is that in fact a significant nunber
of people who fall into this category can be
cured, over time, with treatnment. And with
advances in science, we can only hope for
nor e.

So let's ook at the issue broadly.

Candyco Transcri ption Service, Inc.




© 00 ~N o o b~ w N P

N NN N NN R PR R R R R R R R
O A W N B O © O N o 00 »h W N L O

212

Let's get out the poison pills. Let's take an
honest | ook at the Assenbly's proposals to see
if we can inprove as we hopefully go into
conference comittee.

And let's not pass a bill that has
an unconstitutional prohibition on people
being able to i medi ately get out on a show ng
that they're no | onger dangerous. That is not
in the New York statute, |adies and gentl enen,
and that has to be changed before a final bil
i s passed.

| hope | will have the chance to
vote on a final bill during this session.
hope we will get the Assenbly to a conference
committee on this. It's the right way to go.

I will vote for this bill, subject to all of

t hese concerns, in the hope that we nove the

process along and that we're able to actually
reach agreenent on this.

Again, | comrend all those who are
struggling with this very, very difficult
area, those who favor this and those who
oppose it, for raising these issues. This is
not an easy area of law or policy. But |I am

going to vote aye.

Candyco Transcri ption Service, Inc.




© 00 ~N o o b~ w N P

N NN N NN R PR R R R R R R R
O A W N B O © O N o 00 »h W N L O

213

Thank you, Madam Presi dent.
ACTI NG PRESI DENT LI TTLE: Thank
you, Senator.

Senat or Savi no.

SENATOR SAVI NO. Thank you, Madam
Presi dent .

First, I'd like to commend Senat or
Vol ker for bringing this bill. You know,

about a week ago there was an article in the
newspapers, in all the newspapers, which
showed the results of a poll by the Sienna
Col | ege that said that the people of the State
of New York were very dissatisfied with their
state governnent. They felt that we were not
responsive to them that we did not address
their needs, and we were not acting in their

i nterests.

And | would say that perhaps today
we are taking a step in changing that opinion,
because | think we are addressing a need that
the people of the State of New York for many
years have felt was a serious threat to their
l'ife and/ or health.

| hear the concerns of ny

col | eagues, Senator Schnei derman, Senat or

Candyco Transcri ption Service, Inc.




© 00 ~N o o b~ w N P

N NN N NN R PR R R R R R R R
O A W N B O © O N o 00 »h W N L O

214

Krueger, and Senat or Duane, and their el oquent
di scussi on here about what's not being
addressed. And they're absolutely right that
nore needs to be done. But | think for too

| ong we have | ooked at this particular arena
of the crimnal justice system and the neat al
health system and erred on the side of caution
with respect to the predator and not to the
victim

And while we struggle with how we
find the funding to provide the nental health
services and how we address those issues, the
first thing we have got to do is protect the
future victins so that they are not victins at
all. So if we have to begin by civilly
confining people who we have seen in the past
have denonstrated that they are a danger to
others, then that is where we start as we
grapple with the other issues that have been
rai sed here today.

As | said, this is an ever-evolving
area of the nental health and crimnal justice
area. And it is a nmental health issue, but it
is a mental health issue that results in

crim nal behavior, and we cannot continue to
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i gnore that.

So | stand in support of this
| egislation. And I think we can continue the
di scussi on on how we provi de nore nental
heal t h services, provide nore noney, deal with
this issue as this continues to evol ve.

W' ve cone a | ong way. Wen
Senator Marchi first cane to the Legislature
fifty years ago, if a man was arrested for
sexual |y assaulting a woman, the woman was as
much on trial as the man was. She had to
prove that she hadn't done sonething to entice
that man into attacking her. W know better
NOW.

Twenty years ago we woul d have
| ooked at some of these sexual predators and
t hought that there were things that provoked
them W know better now W knowit's not
about sex, we know it's about violence, we
know it's about power over your victim And
we've got to protect the people who are the
potential victinms and provide justice to those
who have al ready been victim zed.

So | stand in support of this

| egi sl ati on. Thank you.
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ACTI NG PRESI DENT LI TTLE: Thank
you, Senator Savi no.

Is there any other Senator w shing
to be heard?

The debate is closed.

The Secretary will ring the bell

Read the | ast section.

THE SECRETARY: Section 22. This
act shall take effect inmediately.

ACTI NG PRESI DENT LI TTLE: Cal
the roll.

(The Secretary called the roll.)

ACTI NG PRESI DENT LI TTLE: Senat or
Vol ker, to explain his vote.

SENATOR VOLKER: To explain ny
vot e.

| just want to thank my coll eagues
for their comments, and especially Senator
Schnei der man.

This is a bill -- quite obviously,
this is not the final bill, although we'd Iike
to think we could finish up quickly. But I
expect that we probably will go to a
conference committee within the next --

dependi ng on how this works out. Fromthe
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begi nni ng, we had tal ked about the fact we
needed to do Megan's Law first and get that
out of the way, get that done, and then we
bel i eve civil confinenent nmust be dealt wth.

I think Senator Schnei derman makes
a point, and we're certainly going to | ook at
the exit issue. This is the Governor's bill
And al t hough there have been consi derabl e
changes init, it's something we will |ook at.

| just want to point one thing out
t hat Senator Duane said. Senator Duane, there
is treatment in prisons for sexual problens.

In fact, the prison you were in, there isn't
any. But | can tell you from experience -- |
have been in a nunber of prisons, as you can

i magi ne, and we do have treatnent for people
that have sex problens. |In fact, some of them
can't get out on parole until they do have
treat nent.

In fact, | had one individual whose
not her cane to nme and asked nme why her son was
not allowed out. And the reason was he
refused to do a programin the prison system
as regards to trying to help themwi th certain

sexual eval uation probl ens.
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W do have them They're not in
every prison. But frankly, New York has done
a great deal nore in both drugs and al coho
and in dealing with sexual problens.

But I"'mthe first to admt to you
the problemis |I question whether there's
hardly enough noney in the world to do all the
things that we should really do. And it's
easy to say that we're not dealing with the
problenms. But what we are really doing, |
think, is trying to deal the best we can. And
that's what this bill is all about as far as

civil commtment is concerned.

| vote aye.
ACTI NG PRESI DENT LI TTLE: Thank
you. Senator Vol ker will be recorded in the

affirmative.

Senat or Nozzolio, to explain his
vot e.

SENATOR NQzZzZOLI O Thank you,
Madam Presi dent and ny col | eagues. | ask
perm ssion to explain ny vote.

First, I wish to congratul ate
Senat or Vol ker for again putting this neasure

before this house. That the neasure is indeed
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needed. And, Senator Vol ker, thank you for
your consistent | eadership.

The Senate Committee on Crine
Victinms, Crime and Corrections conducted
hearings on this inportant matter this year
and during the past 12 nonths took testinony
froma |lot of individuals. But the individua
I'"d like to thank the nost for helping us with
this particular legislation was not a
New Yor ker but a man by the nane of Mark
Lunsf ord.

Mark Lunsford is a truck driver
fromFlorida who | ost his daughter at the
cruel hands of a sexual predator. And that
grief that Mark Lunsford had hel ped channe
through this legislation. And that before he
hel ped us, though, he hel ped Florida establish
this very same type of civil confinenment for
sexual predators.

Si xt een ot her states have supported
this type of legislation. New York, don't kid
yourself, is not at the forefront; we're
behi nd the curve. But thanks to Senat or
Vol ker' s persistence, we will be establishing

the proper procedures to ensure that those who
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are commtting sex crimes and crinmes agai nst
children don't get out in the street to do it
agai n.

Senat or Skel os said this nany years
ago when Megan's Law was first established:
Once a sex predator, always a sex predator
And that nmeasure certainly is sonething that
is recognized by this legislation, this needed
| egislation. And that | certainly am pl eased

this house is supporting it.

Thank you, Madam President. | vote
aye.

ACTI NG PRESI DENT LI TTLE: Thank
you. Senator Nozzolio will be recorded in the

affirmative.

The Secretary will announce the
results.

THE SECRETARY: Those recorded in
t he negative on Cal endar Number 32 are
Senat ors Duane and Mont gonery. Ayes, 56.
Nays, 2.

ACTI NG PRESI DENT LI TTLE: The
bill is passed.

Senat or Maziarz, that conpletes the

controversial reading of the cal endar.
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SENATOR MAZI ARZ: Thank you very

much, Madam Presi dent.

Is there any further business at
t he desk?

ACTI NG PRESI DENT LI TTLE: No,
there is not.

SENATOR MAZI ARZ: In that case,
Madam Presi dent, there being no further
busi ness, | nove that we adjourn until
Wednesday, January the 18th, at 11:00 a. m

ACTI NG PRESI DENT LI TTLE: On
notion, the Senate stands adjourned until
Wednesday, January 18th, at 11:00 a. m

(Wher eupon, at 4:55 p.m, the

Senat e adj ourned.)
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